Making Everything Easier!™

Market Timing

Learn to:

- Make money in bull and bear markets
- Apply timing methods to your investment strategy
- Accurately predict market trends
- Use fundamental and technical analysis tools
- Increase your investment returns

Joe Duarte, MD President of River Willow Capital Management



Market Timing For Dummies[®]

Table of Contents

Introduction

About This Book

Conventions Used in This Book

Foolish Assumptions

How This Book Is Organized

Part I: Stepping Into the World of Market Timing

Part II: Market Timing's Methods and Strategies

Part III: Applying Timing to the Markets

Part IV: Timing the Sectors

Part V: The Part of Tens

Icons Used in This Book

Where to Go from Here

Part I: Stepping into the World of Market Timing

<u>Chapter 1: Becoming a Market Timer</u> <u>Defining Market Timing</u> <u>Terms of Engagement for Timing</u> <u>Timing Technique: The Secret of Success</u> <u>Running Down Reasons to Market Time</u>

The Nuts and Bolts of Market Timing

Financing your possibilities

Analyzing the markets

Setting your timing ritual

Setting Realistic Expectations

You can't predict the future

You can't win every time

Measure your success reasonably

Enjoying the Process and the Fruits of Your Labor

Chapter 2: Peering Inside the Mind of a Market Timer

Finding Out How Wall Street Really Works

Introducing the Federal Reserve

Uncovering the Psychology of Timing

Vigilance: Being a steady, not a fast Eddie

Preparation: Acknowledging the Boy Scout in all of us

Execution: Pulling the trigger on the trade

Picking Your Battles and Battlefields

Chapter 3: Preparing Yourself and Your Finances for Timing

Defining the Role of Timing in Your Financial Plan

Financing Your Timing

Considering Personal Matters

Determining Your Net Worth

Getting Tooled Up for Timing

Setting up your trading account

Building your timing toolkit

Chapter 4: Charting Your Course: The Market Timer's Edge

Defining the Primary Trend

Introducing the Four Amigos: Signals That the Trend Is Changing

Taking stock of the trend reversal

Riding the highs of breakouts

Getting through the lows of breakdowns

Introducing Commonly Used Charts

Candlestick charts

Bar charts and associated tools

Understanding Moving Averages

Trend and Momentum Oscillators

The "Big Mac" of technical analysis: The MACD oscillator

Finding relative strength with RSI

Getting a Grip on Bollinger Bands

Looking into the future

Thinking outside the bands

Making Technical Analysis Work: An Overview

Looking for the setup

Buying on strength and on dips

Using trend lines as buy and sell points

Running down other important technical formations

Part II: Market Timing's Methods and Strategies

Chapter 5: Timing with the Reports That Move the Markets

Understanding the U.S. and the Global Economies

Homing in on an example

Keeping tabs on the data mill

Getting a Handle on the Reports

Exploring Specific Economic Reports

Using the employment report

Taking in the Consumer Price Index (CPI)

Perusing the Producer Price Index (PPI)

Making sense of the ISM and purchasing managers' reports

Considering consumer confidence

Poring over the Beige Book

Focusing on housing starts

Taking in the Index of Leading Economic Indicators

Grasping Gross Domestic Product

Trading the Big Reports

Chapter 6: The Seasons and Cycles That Influence the Markets

Getting the Big Seasonal Picture

Glimpsing the Monthly Tendencies

The January effect

The turn of the month

Timing Summers, Holidays, and Santa Claus

Summer folly

Holiday fun

Santa Claus is coming to town

Cycling with the Presidents

Examining the cycles during two presidents' terms

Using the cycle cautiously

Chapter 7: Digging In to Trends, Momentum, and Results

Trending with the Times

Looking for trends by time

Secularizing the trend

Using the short-term trend properly

Looking at the long-term trend

Spotting trend changes in the intermediate term

Examining Market Breadth

Consulting the NYSE advance-decline line

Analyzing the McClellan Summation Index

Chapter 8: Timing with Feeling: Making Market Sentiment Work for You

Getting in Touch with Your Contrarian Self

<u>Going with Your Gut — and Your Charts</u>

Identifying greed cycles

Identifying fear cycles

Using Bellwether Stocks

Gauging Feeling with Sentiment Surveys

Using Trading Volume As a Sentiment Tool

Finessing "Soft" Sentiment Indicators

Part III: Applying Timing to the Markets

Chapter 9: Timing in the Real World: Examining a Sample Trade

Setting the Stage for a Sample Trade

Sorting through a major mess

Charting your way to the next step

Getting the long-term picture

Viewing the intermediate term

Getting Ready to Trade

Looking for the right opportunity

Tracking the trade

Fine-tuning your exit point as things progress

Reviewing your timing endeavor

Finding a Sequence for Successful Trading

Chapter 10: Timing the Stock Market

Timing the Whole Enchilada

Starting with the S&P 500

Timing and taming the Nasdaq 100

Timing the Dow Jones Industrial Average

Timing Individual Stocks

Bottom fishing

Riding the momentum roller coaster

Shorting the losers

Chapter 11: Timing the Bond Market

What Makes the Bond Market Tick

The give and take between Fed and bond market

Finding general hints about bonds

Tying economic reports to the bond market

Making Bond Timing Work

Reasons to time bonds

Buying bonds for hedging and diversification

Allocating time and money to bond timing

Finding the right time for bonds

Chapter 12: Timing Foreign Markets

The Whole World Is One Market

Considering the Currency Effect

Timing Foreign Markets

Getting started

Dividing up your timing world

Choosing International ETFs

Chapter 13: Timing the Metals, Heavy or Not

Getting the Golden Touch

Treading carefully with gold stocks

Choosing the best route for trading gold

Rounding out the precious sector

The Industrial Truth: Timing Copper and Other Metals

Mining copper trades

Trading steel, ubiquitous steel

Getting into aluminum

Using ETFs to Trade the Metals

Chapter 14: Timing Commodities: Making Money Down on the Farm

Following the Farming Action

Getting a grip on the growing season

Weathering heights

Turning to a commodity price resource

Looking for opportunities in corn and beans

"ETFing" Your Commodities

The PowerShares DB Commodity Index Tracking Fund

The Greenhaven Continuous Commodity Index

The PowerShares DB Agriculture Fund

Market Vectors Agribusiness

The rise of water ETFs

Chapter 15: Timing Currencies and Related Markets

Diving into the Currency Markets

What makes currencies move

The spot market rules the roost

Finding the Nuts and Bolts of Foreign Exchange

Coring Down on Your Charts

Finding the tradable trend

Keeping your perspective

Timing the subtrends

Meeting the Major Currencies

The U.S. dollar

<u>The euro</u>

The UK pound sterling

The Australian dollar

<u>The Japanese yen</u>

The Swiss franc

Part IV: Timing the Sectors

Chapter 16: The Timer's Dream: Sector Investing

Defining Sector Timing

Analyzing the Markets with a Sector Approach

Defining the Overall Trend

<u>Building — and Watching — Your Sector List</u>

Analyzing Index Components

Getting Fundamental Not Sentimental As You Time Sectors

Chapter 17: Timing Financial Service Stocks

Indexing the Banking Sector

Looking for trades during tough times

When the good times return

Looking for Profit in the Brokerage Sector

Home Sweet Home: The Housing Sector

Finding a home in housing stocks

The mortgage sector

Trusting the Real Estate Investment Trusts

Chapter 18: Timing the Technologies

Applying Timing to Technology

Chips Without Chocolate: The Semiconductor Sector

Tracking down a trend

Investing in semiconductor stocks

Taking a Look at the Hardware Sector

Getting Soft on Software

Intersecting the Internet and Telecommunications Sectors

Chapter 19: Timing the Energy Sector

Factors Influencing the Price of Oil, Natural Gas, Heating Oil, and Gasoline

Supply and demand

The geopolitical equation

The weather issues

Are we running out of oil?

Charting an example

Relating Energy Stocks to the Underlying Commodities

Finding Timing Vehicles for the Energy Sector

Crude oil

Oil and oil service ETFs

Stocking up on oil and oil service

Natural gas

Heating oil

<u>Gasoline</u>

<u>Perusing the Oil Supply Data Report: A Nice Routine for Wednesday</u> <u>Morning</u>

Checking other sources before Wednesday

Reacting to the report

Chapter 20: Timing the Health Care Sector

The Real World of Health Care

Diagnosing the Health Insurers

Introducing the big players

Timing the HMOs

Glimpsing Big Pharma and Biotech

Getting to the technicals

<u>Top-to-bottom analysis</u>

Minding Medical Care Delivery and Hospitals

Making Moves on Medical Equipment

Part V: The Part of Tens

Chapter 21: Ten Game Savers to Know and Trust

Embrace Chaos Theory

Don't Trade if You Don't Have Enough Money

Avoid Impatience to Live and Trade Another Day

Never Trade Against the Trend

Trade with Your Plan Instead of Your Emotions

Don't Be Afraid of the Big Bad . . . Cash

Know When to Say When

Fear the Reaper, Not Adaptation

Set Low Expectations but Avoid Low Self-Esteem

<u>If It Ain't Fun, Forget It</u>

Chapter 22: Ten-Plus Awesome Resources

Timing Web Sites

FibTimer.com

PMFM.com

DecisionPoint.com

StockCharts.com

Joe-Duarte.com

General Investment Information Web Sites

FederalReserve.gov

StLouisFed.org

<u>WSJ.com</u>

Investors.com

Marketwatch.com

Trading Books

Newsletter Resources

Market Timing For Dummies®

Joe Duarte, MD

Wiley Publishing, Inc.

Market Timing For Dummies

Published by **Wiley Publishing, Inc.** 111 River St. Hoboken, NJ 07030-5774 www.wiley.com

Copyright $\ensuremath{\mathbb{C}}$ 2009 by Wiley Publishing, Inc., Indianapolis, Indiana

Published simultaneously in Canada

No part of this publication may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system, or transmitted in any form or by any means, electronic, mechanical, photocopying, recording, scanning, or otherwise, except as permitted under Sections 107 or 108 of the 1976 United States Copyright Act, without either the prior written permission of the Publisher, or authorization through payment of the appropriate per-copy fee to the Copyright Clearance Center, 222 Rosewood Drive, Danvers, MA 01923, 978-750-8400, fax 978-646-8600. Requests to the Publisher for permission should be addressed to the Permissions Department, John Wiley & Sons, Inc., 111 River Street, Hoboken, NJ 07030, (201) 748-6011, fax (201) 748-6008, or online at <u>http://www.wiley.com/go/permissions</u>.

Trademarks: Wiley, the Wiley Publishing logo, For Dummies, the Dummies Man logo, A Reference for the Rest of Us!, The Dummies Way, Dummies Daily, The Fun and Easy Way, Dummies.com, Making Everything Easier!, and related trade dress are trademarks or registered trademarks of John Wiley & Sons, Inc. and/or its affiliates in the United States and other countries, and may not be used without written permission. All other trademarks are the property of their respective owners. Wiley Publishing, Inc., is not associated with any product or vendor mentioned in this book.

Limit of Liability/Disclaimer of Warranty: The contents of this work are intended to further general scientific research, understanding, and discussion only and are not intended and should not be relied upon as recommending or promoting a specific method, diagnosis, or treatment by physicians for any particular patient. The publisher and the author make no representations or warranties with respect to the accuracy or completeness of the contents of this work and specifically disclaim all warranties, including without limitation any implied warranties of fitness for a particular purpose. In view of ongoing research, equipment modifications, changes in governmental regulations, and the constant flow of information relating to the use of medicines, equipment, and devices, the reader is urged to review and evaluate the information provided in the package insert or instructions for each medicine, equipment, or device for, among other things, any changes in the instructions or indication of usage and for added warnings and precautions. Readers should consult with a specialist where appropriate. The fact that an organization or Website is referred to in this work as a citation and/or a potential source of further information does not mean that the author or the publisher endorses the information the organization or Website may provide or recommendations it may make. Further, readers should be aware that Internet Websites listed in this work may have changed or disappeared between when this work was written and when it is read. No warranty may be created or extended by any promotional statements for this work. Neither the publisher nor the author shall be liable for any damages arising herefrom.

For general information on our other products and services, please contact our Customer Care Department within the U.S. at 877-762-2974, outside the U.S. at 317-572-3993, or fax 317-572-4002.

For technical support, please visit <u>www.wiley.com/techsupport</u>.

Wiley also publishes its books in a variety of electronic formats. Some content that appears in print may not be available in electronic books. Library of Congress Control Number: 2008939707

ISBN: 978-0-470-38975-1

Manufactured in the United States of America

10 9 8 7 6 5 4 3 2 1

(P) WILEY

About the Author

Dr. Joe Duarte (<u>www.joe-duarte.com</u>) is best known for his candid, no-nonsense, and prescient expert commentary on the financial and commodity markets, such as his on-the-money call on CNBC, June 4, 2008, when he correctly noted that oil had made a top and that a fall below \$110 would take prices to \$100 or less. By September 2008, oil had broken below \$100. He is a widely read analyst and writer and an active trader. His daily Market IQ column is read by thousands of investors, market timers, and professional traders around the world.

Dr. Duarte is the author of *Futures & Options For Dummies, Trading Futures For Dummies, Successful Biotech Investing, and Successful Energy Sector Investing.*

His combined expertise in health care, energy, and the effects of politics and global intelligence on the financial markets offers a unique blend of insight and information to thousands of active investors and political and intelligence aficionados around the world on a daily basis. Dr. Duarte's Market Moves column is syndicated to a global audience through FinancialWire, a leading independent syndicate of financial information. He is also a featured columnist on the popular investor Web site Stockhouse.com.

Dr. Duarte is a frequent guest on CNBC and is an original CNBC Market Maven. He is a regular guest on the *Financial Sense Newshour with Jim Puplava* radio show, where he comments on the energy markets and geopolitics.

Dr. Duarte has been writing about the financial markets since 1990. His articles and commentary have been featured on Marketwatch.com and in *Barron's, Smart Money, Medical Economics,* and *Technical Analysis of Stocks and Commodities* magazines. He has been quoted in the Associated Press, CNN.com, *The Wall Street Journal, Smart Money Magazine,* and *Investor's Business Daily.*

In 2003, Dr. Duarte received second place in the professional section of the Medical Economics Investment Challenge with a 12-month return of 42 percent.

Dr. Duarte published the critically acclaimed markettiming newsletter "The Wall Street Detective" from 1990-1998, when it became an exclusively electronic publication. It later was converted to Joe-Duarte.com. His daily market commentary "Joe Knows" appeared on Financialweb.com from 1998-2000. Dr. Duarte served as senior columnist for Investorlinks.com from 1998-2001. He is a registered investment advisor and president of River Willow Capital Management.

He lives in Dallas, Texas, plays a Gibson ES-135, and loves his vintage Völkl tennis racket.

Dedication

To family, friends, and market timers around the universe.

Author's Acknowledgments

Writing a book is a unique, lonely, and personal experience, and very few but the author, the editor(s), and those who share the space-time continuum with them can understand this. During this one, I had my share of ups and downs as well as rewards. So I can't complain. Still, I couldn't have done it without the usual gang that helps me on a daily basis. So here's a big thanks to:

My family, my office staffs from my other life, the Wiley editorial staff, especially Stacy and Traci who helped shepherd me to the final goal, nearly on time for once.

Grace "the wonder agent" and purveyor of recurrent gigs. Thank you for sticking with me.

Frank "the master of all things Web-related," without whom there would be no Joe-Duarte.com. Too bad you couldn't come along on this little expedition.

To Stone Barrington, Michelle Maxwell, and Sean King, Gabriel Allon, Oliver Stone (the literary character, not the movie director), and other inhabitants of pages and audio books that help me stay sane as I work and travel. As always coffee, tea, vitamins, sports drinks, nutrition bars, and the game of tennis also help.

Special thanks to those who read my books, subscribe to my Web site and have kept this thing going for 18 years. Who'd've thunk it?

And also to two longtime friends, John and Greg, whose interactions with me always prove to be worthwhile and interesting, to say the least.

My patients who so graciously come back the next day even if I've had to run out of the office in a hurry to be on CNBC.

If I've forgotten to mention anyone, it wasn't intentional. I'm not as young as I used to be.

Publisher's Acknowledgments

We're proud of this book; please send us your comments through our online registration form located at <u>http://dummies.custhelp.com</u>. For other comments, please contact our Customer Care Department within the U.S. at 877-762-2974, outside the U.S. at 317-572-3993, or fax 317-572-4002.

Some of the people who helped bring this book to market include the following:

Acquisitions, Editorial, and Media Development

Project Editor: Traci Cumbay

Acquisitions Editor: Stacy Kennedy

Copy Editor: Traci Cumbay

Editorial Program Coordinator: Erin Calligan Mooney

Technical Editor: Tim Ord

Senior Editorial Manager: Jennifer Ehrlich

Editorial Supervisor and Reprint Editor: Carmen Krikorian

Editorial Assistants: Jennette ElNaggar, David Lutton, Joe Niesen

Cover Photos: Blend Images

Cartoons: Rich Tennant (<u>www.the5thwave.com</u>)

Composition Services

Project Coordinator: Katie Key

Layout and Graphics: Nikki Gately, Sarah Philippart, Christine Williams

Proofreaders: Christine Sabooni

Indexer: Word Co Indexing Services

Publishing and Editorial for Consumer Dummies

Diane Graves Steele, Vice President and Publisher, Consumer Dummies

Kristin Ferguson-Wagstaffe, Product Development Director, Consumer Dummies

Ensley Eikenburg, Associate Publisher, Travel

Kelly Regan, Editorial Director, Travel

Publishing for Technology Dummies

Andy Cummings, Vice President and Publisher, Dummies Technology/General User

Composition Services

Gerry Fahey, Vice President of Production Services

Debbie Stailey, Director of Composition Services

Introduction

When I started trading, I had no idea that I was a market timer. The whole concept that you could actually maximize your gains and avoid major losses by managing your portfolio was foreign to me, given the fact that Wall Street's buy-and-hold mantra is the first thing that anyone ever hears about. But after nearly 20 years in the business, every time there's a bear market or a market crash, I'm glad that I took it upon myself to learn the craft.

Martin Zweig, a legendary money manager from the 1980s, changed the way I looked at investing when he promoted his book *Winning on Wall Street* (Grand Central Publishing) in the early days of financial television. The phrases "don't fight the Fed" and "don't fight market momentum" were so intriguing that I bought the book and became a market timer.

With this book, I hope to humbly contribute to opening more readers' eyes to a new reality — that of being able to avoid catastrophic losses and to maximize stock market gains by actively managing their portfolios.

About This Book

Market timing is the most essential aspect of all trading and investing endeavors. If you think about it, timing is the key to success in many things you do. Try to hit a tennis ball without timing your stroke. Or try to run a yellow light before that camera goes off behind you without timing. So why is it that if you're talking about getting married or buying a house, people say that "timing is everything," but when you talk about market timing, people roll their eyes and tell you that it's impossible? In fact, market timing isn't just possible; it's central to successful trading because whenever you mistime an entry or an exit to any trading or investing position, you run the risk of reducing your profits or losing money outright.

Indeed, because market timing is so misunderstood and maligned, it's still an area of trading that few people practice — openly, anyway. Its shady reputation gives the successful timer an advantage over the financial planner, the retail broker, their unsuspecting clients, and their buyand-hold strategy. As others hold on to falling stocks through bear markets and see their assets dwindle, you'll be able to make money or preserve more of your bull market gains by applying the market timing techniques in this book.

Am I guaranteeing you gains? Of course not; you don't get guarantees on anything in life. You wouldn't stay on a sinking ship in the middle of a hurricane, yet millions of investors decide to ride out massive bear markets and stock market corrections, pinning their hopes and their retirements on that old adage "the long-term trend is up."

Being different could make you money if you consider market timing a viable alternative to the old Wall Street "buy and hold" swindle. If you have any doubts about considering market timing, remember that Wall Street has also given us things like portfolio insurance, the savings and loan crisis, the Internet bubble, and most recently the subprime mortgage crisis. Each of these little gifts from the guys who tell you that holding stocks for the long term is the only way to fly has also led to major bear markets where investors have lost billions by holding on to their investments too long.

Sure, the market came back. But in many if not all cases, the best that most buy-and-hold investors got was all their money back. Those who sold early in the start of the down trend had more money to invest when the market turned up. Better, those who sold the market short actually made money when the market fell. And because of new products, such as exchange-traded mutual funds (ETFs), short selling is as easy as buying shares of stock through your online broker with one click of the mouse.

This book is about staying with the overall market trend. It's about knowing when to get in and out of your trading or investment positions with enough time to preserve more of your hard-earned money. Accomplish that, and when things turn around, you can start in a better place than someone who rode the bear market all the way down to the bottom and is only likely to get her money back — if she's lucky enough and has enough time.

Conventions Used in This Book

To assist your navigation of this book, I've established the following conventions:

I use *italic* for emphasis and to highlight new words or terms that I define.

I use monofont for Web addresses.

Sidebars, which are shaded boxes of text, consist of information that's interesting but not necessarily critical to your understanding of the topic.

If the book seems to be a little heavy on jargon, it's because there is no other way of saying what I'm trying to say. Believe me, this book was heavily edited, and carefully combed through in order to make it as accessible as possible to you.

Foolish Assumptions

In order to write this book, I had to make assumptions about who you might be. Market timing isn't rocket science, but it's not for preschoolers, either, and I have done my level best to walk the line between basic and technical information that gives readers what they need to go forth and confidently time the markets. As I did that, I assumed that you

> Know something about trading and have some experience. (I'm actually hoping that you have more than a little experience; this topic is difficult for beginning investors and may be a fairly risky practice for those with little savvy.)

Don't mind working hard and spending time analyzing the markets on a regular — even daily — basis in order to be successful.

Will set time aside on a regular basis to develop your trading skills, and will run your trading as a business, keeping accurate records of your trades, both winning and losing, and reviewing them on regular basis. Are well financed enough to be able to take some risks with your money without impairing your longterm finances or your family's well being.

Are interested in trading with the prevailing trend of the stock market but not quite interested in day trading.

Are tired of missing opportunities and waiting too long to take profits and so would like to improve your ability to enter and exit markets.

Would like to expand your trading beyond the stock market but are more interested in trading commodities and futures through exchange-traded funds than in trading futures or options directly.

Want to be able to make money when the market enters a down trend but don't really want to go through the hassle of opening a margin account or a futures account.

Have or would like to develop the market analysis skills that enable you to be patient in order to recognize outstanding opportunities and don't mind some break-even, lose-a-little, or gain-a-little trades along the way.

Recognize that this is a global marketplace in which futures, stocks, bonds, and currencies influence each other and that you need to be well versed in the vagaries of international markets in order to maximize your profit potential.

Have access to top-of-the-line computing equipment, an online trading account, and a highspeed Internet connection, as well as the ability to check your trades when you're not in front of your trading station.

How This Book Is Organized

To make this book easy to navigate, I've organized it into five parts. The following sections give you a quick rundown of what you find in each.

Part I: Stepping Into the World of Market Timing

In this part, I ease you into the wide world of market timing, introducing you to its basic tenets and showing you the tools you use to time the markets. You find out about the principles that market timers use, and the charts they use to get the timing job done. Read this part to stock up on the raw materials of market timing.

Part II: Market Timing's Methods and Strategies

Here you get into the meat of timing. I tell you how to prepare for and decipher the economic reports that matter. Believe it or not, timing in January can be different from timing in July, and in this part I introduce you to some of the seasonal and cyclical patterns you find in the markets.

Your primary directive as a timer is finding the prevailing trend in the markets and making trades according to that trend. But the market reacts not just to facts and realities but to how traders, financial experts, and consumers feel about those trends, and I tell you about how to assess the sentiment as well as the trend.

Part III: Applying Timing to the Markets

What happens when the all the timing principles I cover in Parts I and II come together in a trade? I kick off this part of the book by taking you through every step of my actions and thinking as I executed a real trade. Your mileage may vary, but glimpsing the way the parts come together gives you great insight into the planning and evaluation that are timing's hallmark.

The later chapters run through the various markets you might want to dip your toes into, from the stock market you probably already know and trade to the specifics of currency, commodity, and many more markets.

Part IV: Timing the Sectors

Opportunities run through the stock market all the time; your job is to find them, and in this part I take you on a tour of some of the major divisions within the market. You find out about timing technology stocks, for example, as well as the energy, financial, and health care sectors. This part is one of my favorite sections of the book, as I get into the very specific characteristics of each of these very profitable sections of the stock market.

Part V: The Part of Tens

In every For Dummies book, you find chapters that give you quick tips for the topic at hand, and right here is where you find them. In this part, I give you a rundown of many more than ten resources that I turn to most often as well as ten ways to keep your timing practice on track without losing your shirt or your sanity.

Icons Used in This Book

I use icons to emphasize and reinforce information throughout the book. Here's a list of the icons you find and what you can expect from the text they highlight.



When I present a concept that is important for you to keep in mind as you read, I include this icon beside it. This icon directs you to bits that enable you put together key concepts.



Feel free to skip over information highlighted with this icon. I use it to point you toward information that goes deeper than you need. You might find these advanced tidbits interesting, but you can come away with a complete understanding of market timing without them.

õ

A tip is something that you can use right away in your trading practice. Tips save you time or money and give you the benefit of my many years of trading experience.



This bomb icon reminds me of funny old cartoons and the Pink Panther movies, but its message is hugely important. I use this icon to identify practices or notions that could cause damage to you or your trading accounts.

Where to Go from Here

In short: Anywhere you want. For Dummies books are written so that you can jump in at any point that interests you. Want to find out how presidential elections affect your investments? Head straight to Chapter 6. Interested in browsing the various market sectors? Part IV has what you want. If you're brand-new to market timing or just an overachiever, turn to Chapter 1 and don't stop reading until you get to the index.

I've been a market timer for 20-plus years and have found the concepts that I've put forth in this book quite useful. I hope that you do, too.